
From: Wickersham, Jr., Richard
To: Super, Korinne
Subject: RE: CPSC FOIA Request #23-F-00592 - Clarification Needed
Date: Thursday, September 28, 2023 8:28:10 PM

Morning Korinne!

I would expect with a January 2019 Canadian Recall, a proper time period would be 2017 to date?

Thanks in advance for your assistance with our investigation of this product which caused a serious
injury.  Much appreciated.

Bruce

Richard B. Wickersham, Jr.
Principal
Post & Schell, P.C.
Four Penn Center, 13th Floor
1600 John F. Kennedy Blvd.
Philadelphia, PA 19103

215-587-6612 (Phone)
215-901-0766 (Cell)
215-320-4875 (Fax)
rwickersham@postschell.com
www.postschell.com
Download My Contact Information
__________________________________________________________

From: Super, Korinne <KSuper@cpsc.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2023 3:02 PM
To: Wickersham, Jr., Richard <RWickershamJr@PostSchell.com>
Subject: CPSC FOIA Request #23-F-00592 - Clarification Needed

ALERT: This message originated outside of Post & Schell's network. BE CAUTIOUS before
clicking any link or attachment.

Dear Mr. Wickersham,

We received your FOIA request for, inter alia, “information and documentation related to the Government
of Canada, Recall No. RA-68862.”

Please advise a search timeframe for the Canadian recall records. Once received, we will conduct our
search and process your request.

Thank you,
Korinne

_____________________

Korinne I.B. Super
Attorney Advisor, Division of Information Access

mailto:RWickershamJr@PostSchell.com
mailto:KSuper@cpsc.gov
https://urldefense.us/v3/__http://www.postschell.com/attorneys/richard-b-wickersham__;!!K4v5ATkRwarYYQ!1xWl60Ev2p6s80iGXwTGrvMs7TWlOY4W-jfXOfK8g3EPBn-Xi5PlWE-8Fv4_XtyZRIA4ADJ-ghlmheT1zS0gSTW63oc$
mailto:rwickersham@postschell.com
https://urldefense.us/v3/__http://www.postschell.com/__;!!K4v5ATkRwarYYQ!1xWl60Ev2p6s80iGXwTGrvMs7TWlOY4W-jfXOfK8g3EPBn-Xi5PlWE-8Fv4_XtyZRIA4ADJ-ghlmheT1zS0g5NpQvNI$
https://urldefense.us/v3/__http://www.postschell.com/attorneys/richard-b-wickersham-vcard__;!!K4v5ATkRwarYYQ!1xWl60Ev2p6s80iGXwTGrvMs7TWlOY4W-jfXOfK8g3EPBn-Xi5PlWE-8Fv4_XtyZRIA4ADJ-ghlmheT1zS0godYed9g$
KSuper
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December 21, 2023 

Via Email & Public Access Link (PAL) 
Richard B. Wickersham, Jr. 
Post & Schell, P.C. 
Four Penn Center 
1600 John F. Kennedy Blvd. 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2808 
rwickersham@postschell.com 

 
RE:  Freedom of Information Act Request #23-F-00592: All information and documentation related 
to CPSC Recall 19-069 and the Government of Canada Recall No. RA-68862. [See attached Request 
Description] 

 
Dear Mr. Wickersham: 

Thank you for your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request seeking information from the U.S. 
Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC). Enclosed please find a copy of the records responsive 
to your request, which are contained in CPSC recall file RP190048, with certain excisions explained 
below. 

The enclosed records include file information generated by CPSC, or its contractors, for regulatory or 
enforcement purposes. These records are in the above-stated CPSC recall file. CPSC has established 
management systems under which supervisors are responsible for reviewing the work of their 
employees or contractors. The file information materials are final and have been prepared and accepted 
by CPSC staff under such review systems. CPSC believes that it has taken reasonable steps to ensure 
the accuracy of the information. 

 
Any records responsive to your request for "[a]ll information and documentation related to the 
Government of Canada, Recall No. RA-68862" are maintained in the above-stated CPSC recall file. 

 
Portions of RP190048 are being withheld pursuant to FOIA Exemptions 3, 4, and 5, 5 U.S.C. §§ 
552(b)(3), (b)(4), and (b)(5), and sections 6(a)(2) and 6(b)(1) of the Consumer Product Safety Act 
(CPSA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 2055(a)(2) and (b)(1). Additionally, portions of RP190048 are related to recalls 
that are not the subject of FOIA request #23-F-00592 and are not being released on that basis. CPSC 
considered the foreseeable harm standard when reviewing these records and applying FOIA 
exemptions. 
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Exemption 3. FOIA Exemption 3 permits withholding from disclosure matters that are specifically 
exempted from disclosure by another statute. In applying FOIA Exemption 3 to these records, we are 
relying in part on section on Consumer Product Safety Act (CPSA) section 6(a)(2) to withhold files that 
contain proprietary and confidential information, and CPSA section 6(b)(1). 

 
Exemption 4. CPSA Section 6(a)(2) prohibits the CPSC from disclosing information that is exempt from 
disclosure under Exemption 4 of the FOIA. That exemption protects trade secrets and confidential 
commercial information directly related to a firm's business that the firm has not made public and whose 
disclosure could give a substantial commercial advantage to a competitor. We are withholding the 
following pages in full under FOIA Exemptions 3 and 4, and CPSA section 6(a)(2), which contain 
confidential commercial information submitted by the manufacturer, including information submitted in 
the manufacturer’s CPSA section 15 report, and product and testing information: 1-4 (Initial Report); 
11-19 (Full Report); 27 (product data); 29-30, 251-252 (supplement to Full Report); 55-60 (customer 
support information); and 255-263 (documents submitted with Full Report). A spreadsheet comprising 
a retailer list is also withheld in full under FOIA Exemptions 3 and 4, and CPSA section 6(a)(2). 

 
Similarly, we are withholding in part, the following pages of RP190048 that contain confidential 
commercial or business information: 5, 33-34, 45, 47, 49-50, 52, 280-286, 288-289, 291, 293-295, and 
297-301. 

 
In applying FOIA Exemption 3, we are also relying on CPSC’s regulations at 16 C.F.R. § 1101.33(b) 
and section 6(b)(1) of the CPSA, which require that CPSC will not disclose information when it would 
not be fair in the circumstances. It would not be fair in the circumstances to disclose a firm’s notes, 
drafts, discussions, and information submitted to the CPSC to negotiate a press release and corrective 
action plan when the company has requested confidentiality and such records are protected from 
disclosure pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 1101.33(b). We are withholding the file materials that would reveal 
draft materials, settlement negotiations, and discussions concerning the negotiation of the press 
release and corrective action plan from the following pages of RP190048 in their entirety: 

 
A. 53-54, 61-64, 83, 87-91, 100, 106, 107-109, 120-123, 125, 137-138, 143-145, 158, 164-165, 

169-170, 184-185, 197, 204, 208-209, 214-216, 222-223, 248-250, 264-266, 268, 276, 279 
(correspondence between the firm and CPSC regarding recall negotiations); and 

B. 139-142, 159-161, 166-168, 171-173, 186-188, 205-207, 210-212, 224-226 (draft recall 
announcements). 

 
Similarly, we are withholding in part, the following pages of RP190048 that contain such information: 
28, 33-34, 48, 105, 110-112, 115, 163, 213, 272, 275, and 278. 

 
Exemption 5. FOIA Exemption 5 permits withholding from disclosure inter-agency and intra-agency 
memoranda which would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the 
agency. The staff memoranda and analyses being withheld are pre-decisional and deliberative, 
consisting of recommendations, opinions, suggestions, and analyses of technical and/or legal staff. Any 
factual materials in the memoranda not covered by some other exemption are inextricably intertwined 
with exempt materials, or the disclosure of the factual materials would expose the deliberative process 
and/or violate the attorney-client privilege. It would not be in the public interest to disclose these 
materials because disclosure would impair the frank exchange of views necessary for such matters. 
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Accordingly, we are withholding in full under Exemption 5, the following pages of RP190048, which 
contain pre-decisional draft documents and staff deliberations: 31-32, 72-73, 74-82, 97-99, 117, 134- 
136, 149-152, 155-157, 176-178, 181-183, 190-192, 194-196, 219-221, and 302-303. 

 
Fees. Enclosed is a final invoice detailing the fees charged for FOIA request #23-F-00592. CPSC’s 
FOIA regulations at 16 C.F.R. § 1015.9 permit charging fees for processing FOIA requests. 

 
Please make a payment of the total amount due, $129.00. Payments can be submitted directly from a 
bank account or by credit/debit card using Pay.gov. The Pay.gov website allows remitters to make 
secure payments electronically. It is an easy and convenient system that is available 7 days a week - 
24 hours a day. The following link directs you to the pay.gov website: https://pay.gov. You may also 
pay via U.S. mail. If paying by mail, checks or money orders should be made payable to the U.S. 
Department of Treasury and mailed to: MMAC/FAA/DOT/CPSC, HQ RM I 81/AMK- 326, 6500 S. 
Macarthur Boulevard, Oklahoma City, OK 73169. 

 
Note: After thirty days interest will be charged on amounts billed. Furthermore, if billing is not paid in a 
timely manner the CPSC will require advance payment for your future requests and any pending 
requests. 

 
FOIA Administrative Procedures 

 
Right to Appeal. According to the CPSC's regulations implementing the FOIA at 16 C.F.R. § 1015.7, a 
partial denial of access to records may be appealed. Also, a fee determination may be appealed 
pursuant to the CPSC’s regulations at 16 C.F.R. § 1015.9(f)(6). You may administratively appeal in 
writing, addressed to FOIA APPEAL, Office of the General Counsel, ATTN: Division of Information 
Access, U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission, 4330 East West Highway, Room 820, Bethesda, 
MD 20814-4408. 

 
Your appeal must be postmarked or electronically transmitted (cpscfoiarequests@cpsc.gov) within 90 
days of the date of the response to your request. You may also fax your appeal to 301-504-0127. You 
may contact us Monday – Friday from 8:00AM – 4:30PM ET, by telephone at 1-800-638-2772, by fax 
to 301-504-0127, or by email addressed to cpsc-foia@cpsc.gov. 

 
Before filing a formal appeal with the CPSC, you may contact me or CPSC’s Senior FOIA Public 
Liaison, Robert Dalton (rdalton@cpsc.gov), at 1-800-638-2772, for any further assistance, or to discuss 
any aspect of your request. Assistance may include guidance on possible reformulation of your request 
or an alternative time frame for processing the request. 

 
Right to Mediation. Additionally, you may contact the Office of Government Information Services (OGIS) 
at the National Archives and Records Administration to inquire about the FOIA mediation services they 
offer. The contact information for OGIS is as follows: Office of Government Information Services, 
National Archives and Records Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road-OGIS, College Park, Maryland 
20740-6001; email at ogis@nara.gov; telephone at 202-741-5770; toll free at 1-877-684-6448; or fax 
to 202-741-5769. 

https://pay.gov/
mailto:cpscfoiarequests@cpsc.gov
mailto:cpsc-foia@cpsc.gov
mailto:cgerus@cpsc.gov
mailto:ogis@nara.gov
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Sincerely, 

Digitally signed by Korinne 
Super 
Date: 2023.12.21 09:35:05 -05'00' 

Korinne I.B. Super 
Attorney Advisor 
Office of the General Counsel 
Division of Information Access 
301-504-7416 
ksuper@cpsc.gov 

Enclosures: 23-F-00592 Invoice 
RP190048 (via PAL) 

Korinne Super 

mailto:ksuper@cpsc.gov
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